M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
February 22, 2002
9: 06 AM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 15, Side A
SFC 02 # 15, Side B
SFC 02 # 16, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey convened the nmeeting at approxinmately 9:06 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda G een

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senator Loren Leman

Al so Attendi ng: DAN SPENCER, Director, Division of Adm nistrative
Services, Departnment of Admnistration; ALISON ELGEE, Deputy
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Adm nistration; TOM LAWSON, Director,
Division of Adm nistrative Services, Departnment of Community and
Econom ¢ Devel opnment; DWAYNE PEEPLES, Director, D vision of
Adm ni strative Services, Departnent of Corrections; LARRY JONES,
Executive Director, Board of Paroles, Departnent of Corrections;
KAREN REHFELD, Director, Division of Education Support Services,
Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent; EDDY JEANS, WManager,
School Finance and Facilities Section, D vision of Education
Support Services, Department of Education and Early Devel opnent;

Attendi ng via Tel econference: From Anchorage: BARABARA BRI NK,
Director, Public Defender Agency, Departnent of Adm nistration

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

SB 291- SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS: FAST TRACK
This bill was schedul ed but not heard.
SB 292- SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS

The Conmittee heard testinony from the Departnent of

SFC- 02 (1) 02/ 22/ 02



Adm ni stration, Departnent of Community and Econom c Devel opnent,
Department of Corrections, and the Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent. The bill was held in Commttee.

#sb292

SENATE BI LL NO. 292

"An Act maki ng suppl enental and ot her appropriations; anmendi ng
appropriations; making appropriations to capitalize funds; and
providing for an effective date."”

This was the second hearing for these bills in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

Departnent of Adm nistration

Section 1(a)(1)

Department of Adm nistration

Fi nance

Contractual costs for maintenance of the State payroll system
( AKPAY)

$150, 000 general funds

DAN SPENCER, Director, D vision of Admnistrative Services,

Departnent of Adm nistration stated this request is a high priority
itemfor the Departnent as the state’'s “antiquated” payroll system
is requiring constant maintenance and is generating additiona

operating expense. He continued that, in addition, the systenis
software is being phased out, resulting in the need for the
Departnment to train progranmers to convert existing data to a new
dat abase managenent system

Co-Chair Donley asked if a request for training had been incl uded
in the FY 02 budget.

M. Spencer affirnmed it had been requested, but had not been
f unded.

Co-Chair Donley asked why the Departnment did not re-adjust
priorities to acconmodate this need.

M. Spencer stated adjustnments were nade; however, the current
staff tine is absorbed in repairing the existing software to keep
it functioning. He stated the Departnent currently is mnimally
staffed and “are in a day-to-day keep the system goi ng node.” He
noted that during the sumrer, the Departnent had a staff shortage;

SFC- 02 (2) 02/ 22/ 02



however currently there is a full programm ng staff. He stressed
that being fully staffed now allows tinme for people to get the
addi tional training necessary for the upcom ng conversion to new
sof t war e.

Co- Chair Donley asked the nunber of press relation’s staff the
Depart ment enpl oys.

ALI SON ELCGEE, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of Adm nistration,
stated the Departnment has no press officers.

Co-Chair Donley asked if the Governor’s office handles the
Department’s press rel eases.

Ms El gee responded the Departnment uses the Governor’s O fice staff
for assistance with press rel eases.

Co-Chair Donley asked if the Departnent could not have shifted
“other less priority” resources toward these programm ng needs.

M. Spencer responded, “this is a situation where the Departnent
has a need and knows the cost of the need and is bringing it” to
the Commttee. He stated, “obviously, if you don't feel it rises to
a priority level, we will have to see if we can reassi gn sone folks
or create the savings sonewhere else.”

Co-Chair Donley asked if the Departnment has determned this was
such a priority as to “feel it’s a need that would cause you to
reassign things” to get it done.

M. Spencer affirmed that it is of such a need, and the Depart nent
woul d have to start reassigning people if this supplenental request
is not granted. He warned that other Departnent responsibilities
woul d not be addressed. He stressed that the Departnent “would
rat her not have to stop doing other things.”

Co-Chair Donl ey asked what activities the Departnent woul d forego
if it shifted priorities to neet this need.

M. Spencer responded that the Departnent has not created a |ist
yet, as they have been waiting for the outcone of this request.

Co-Chair Donley stated the Commttee had requested a prioritization
list fromthe conm ssioner. He surm sed the |list should have been
created by now.

M. Spencer replied that a list was created prioritizing itens for
the FY 03 operating budget, but not for the supplenental requests.

SFC- 02 (3) 02/ 22/ 02



Co-Chair Donley stated the Departnent’s correspondence did not
appear to prioritize duties or specify which prograns could be
elimnated if resources needed to be shifted to support other
progr ans.

M. Spencer stated the Departnment’s response qualified that the
duties the Departnent perforns are set in statute and the
Department is obligated to fulfill them

Co-Chair Donley countered that the Governor could introduce
| egi slation to amend statutes to address this concern.

M. Spencer asked the Conmittee to conmunicate this suggestion to
the Governor’'s O fice.

Senator Ward confirnmed that the request sent to the Departnent’s
Conmi ssi oner specifically requested prioritization of prograns. He
continued that knowi ng exact nonetary needs of the various
departnents’ and a list of departnents’ priorities would assist the
| egislature in determning how to address the state’s needs in the
FY 03 budget. He clarified that the intent of the letter was for a
prioritization list.

M. Spencer voiced appreciation for the clarification. He
reiterated the need for the Departnent to conply with statutory
mandat es, and stated that one mandate involves the state payrol
system and “keeping the enpl oyees paid.” He continued that these
statutes have been “on the books for sone tine,” and that the
Department has not received a request to consider statutory
changes. He stressed that the Departnment’s roll in prioritizing
prograns is presented according to current statute mandates, and
that statutory changes suggested now woul d not affect the current
situati on.

Senator Ward expressed that schools and other entities are
experiencing funding shortfalls and he stated that “governnent
needs to be reduced sone anount, and everybody needs to share in
this a little bit.” He requested the Departnent to examne its
prograns “to determine where cuts can be nmade.” He stated this
information in essential in determning the best way for the
Legi sl ature to approach downsi zi ng the budget w thout doing “across
the board cuts.” He stated that the Commttee receives requests for
nore noney; however, they also need to see what prograns can “live
wWth less.” He stressed he has not seen any “we can live with | ess
stuff.”

Co-Chair Donley stated the Conmittee understands the position the

SFC- 02 (4) 02/ 22/ 02



Departnent is in regarding statutory mandates, and comment ed t hat
he had requested suggestions for statutory |aw changes from the
Departnment’ s Comm ssi oner; however, the Conm ssioner did not supply
any suggesti ons.

Co-Chair Donley requested the Departnent to exam ne any non-
statutory duties and to determne the lowest priority statutory
duties that could be statutorily elimnated or altered to cause the
“l east anount of inpact upon the services that the state delivers
to the people of the state.”

Senat or Hoffman rem nded Committee nenbers that in the 1990's,
Al aska was the only state in the nation to reduce its budget, and
now ot her states are evaluating cutting their budgets. He stressed
the need for Alaska to develop a long-term plan to bal ance the
budget in order to have “a sustainable budget and provide the
services that the people want.” He stressed that m nor cuts “here
and there” would not acconplish this; and questioned what the
Legislature is doing to achieve the goal of sustainability. He
stated his election district has felt the inpacts of cutbacks and
is ready to address whatever is needed to secure a workabl e budget.

Senator Ward agreed with Senator Hof frman, and said that while taxes
may be necessary to address the revenue shortfall, “government as a
whole is on the table.” He insisted that the state’s departnents
“have an obligation to come in with at |east a one dollar
reduction” from the previous year; however “what we have is an
Adm ni stration saying we need this nuch nore because this is really
an inportant thing.” He continued “of course it is, but where are
you going to take it from..fromgovernnment.” He stated, “everyone
has to share in this, that the whole burden can’t be placed on the
peopl e to keep governnent going. Let’s just do the services that we
need.”

Senat or Hoffman asked Senator Ward why, if he is supporting
spending “even one dollar less,” is he supporting spending
addi tional noney for tourismand other itens.

Senator Ward voi ced support for Senator Hoffrman's remarks and said
the Admnistration nust set the priorities and inform the
Legislature if spending noney on such things in the budget as the
Arctic Wnter Ganes, public radio, and the Power Cost Equali zation
program are as inportant as keepi ng schools functioning. He stated
that everybody has to share in this reduction and start
prioritizing within the Departnents. He noted he had not voted for
| egi sl ation appropriating funds to the tourismindustry, and there
are several other appropriations he would not support; however, he
woul d prefer the Departnents to prioritize prograns and reduce

SFC- 02 (5) 02/ 22/ 02



expenditures. He stated the savings could then be reallocated to
prograns that “really need the noney.”

Co-Chair Donley reiterated, “prioritization is nore than just
prioritizing new spending, its prioritizing spending you don't have
to do anynore to substitute and nake room for the new spending. It
runs both ways and all we see is one way in this Adm nistration.”
He stated this 1is “what concerns” and *“disappoints” the
Legislature. He stated the Legislature is continuously told by the
Departnents that “it is not our job to prioritize, it’s not our job
to make choices.” He stated it is hard for the Conmttee to
determ ne whether the testifiers are following instructions they
received fromthe Admnistration “to put the Republican |egislature
in a box, don't help us solve the fiscal crisis, or whether you
really don’t know the answer. | don’t know whether you are
following instructions or whether you are doing your job.” He
commented, “there is a difference between the two, for the people
of Al aska.”

Senat or Leman stressed the purpose of this neeting is not to cut
t he budget, rather to address suppl enental requests that increase
the budget. He comrented that supplenentals are the result of
changing conditions, and he is interested in knowng what
conditions have changed or if the cause is unplanned expenditures
or incorrect planning.

Section 1(a)(2)

Department of Adm nistration

General Relief

Shortfunding for projected casel oad.
$273, 000 general funds

Ms. Elgee explained this item addresses caseload increases
i nvolving the “placenent of vulnerable adults in assisted living
where protected services are needed because the individual is at
risk.” She stated this funding was proposed but not funded in the
FY 02 budget.

Co- Chair Donl ey asked what efforts were nade by the Departnent to
m nimze the need for this supplenental request.

Ms. Elgee responded that the Departnent has been undergoing a
regul ation process that wll assist the Departnent to better
control the program She informed the Conmittee that when the
revised regul ations were first introduced, there was a great deal
of confusion anobngst the providers. She stated there was
di sagreenment as to whether the Departnent correctly interpreted the
Legislative intent of the program and the Departnent was asked by

SFC- 02 (6) 02/ 22/ 02



the Legislature to postpone the adoption of the replacenent
regul ations until the Legislature had an opportunity to re-review
the reqgulations. She continued that, at the present tinme, the
regul ations are under review by the Departnment of Law with an
expected adoption date of July 2002.

Co-Chair Donl ey asked the anmount of noney these regulations are
projected to save on an annual basis.

Ms. El gee responded the Departnent woul d neet the paraneters of the
prepared fiscal note that was submtted with SB 73 when that
| egi sl ati on was passed.

Co- Chair Donley asked what efforts have been nade to offset the
i ncrease of funding for this program

Ms. El gee responded this is a difficult situation as the Departnment
has been working through “the confusion that has been created”
anongst the provider comunity as well as anongst Legi sl ators about
the intent of SB 73; specifically the setting of very specific
daily rates that the Departnent pays assisted living facilities for
pl acenment of an adult in the facility. She detailed the historical
paynment plan and the changes inposed by SB 73 relating to the
charges for room board and services. She stated that by not having
the regulations in place, the Departnent has had to negotiate a
“paynment nmechanisni with each provider. She elaborated on the
conplications involved if the patient al so needs assi stance through
the Medicaid waiver. She stated the confusion, conbined with an
increase in the nunber of individuals needing assistance, has
resulted in this supplenental request. She stated that once the
regul ations are in place, the Departnent would be able to work
wi thin the guidelines of the fiscal note.

Senat or Green asked what savings would occur if the regulations
were set in place now instead of July.

Ms. Elgee responded the regulations are in final review at the
Department of Law and are not anticipated to be in place unti
July; however, at that time, the Departnent’s FY 03 budget proposal
woul d be in place and woul d be adhered to.

Co-Chair Donley asked if the Departnment is confident of the timng
on the inplenentation of the regulations as this could affect the
FY 03 budget.

Ms. Elgee affirnmed the regulations would be in place by July 1

Senat or Green asked the Departnent for other suggestions to inprove

SFC- 02 (7) 02/ 22/ 02



this situation.

Ms. El gee responded the Departnent has been working closely with
the Departnment of Health and Social Services due to the overlap in
departnments resulting fromthe Medicaid waiver for the elderly. She
suggested that changing the Medicaid waiver reinbursenent for
assisted living to allow for a comunity based system would be
beneficial. She explained that the current “Medicaid rei nbursenent
systemis based on an old adult foster care rate structure that was
in place in the early 1990's” and rei nburses homes based on the
size of the hone, which does not reflect the need level of the
i ndividual. She noted that many of the small hones currently
receive a small reinbursenent anount although they care for people
with very high needs. She continued, “we need to get this fixed so
that the assisted |iving conmunity gets adequately conpensated for
the services they are delivering.” She stated the Departnent “is
exploring with Departnent of Health and Social Services the
opportunity to refinance, through the Medicaid program a portion
of what is presently paid’ to individuals through Adult Public
Assi stance. She stated if this endeavor were successful, it would
allow the Departnent to use funds that are presently in the Adult
Public Assistance Programto “leverage federal funds through the
Medi cai d program and shift nore costs to the Medi caid program where
we are sharing those expenses with the federal governnent.”

Senator Green asked if classifying some of these costs as energency
procedures woul d be beneficial and would all ow sone of the costs to
be shifted to federal Medicaid; thereby allowing the state to
| everage state funds.

Ms. Elgee responded that, *“enmergency regulations are very
specifically defined as to what constitutes an energency.”

Senator Green inquired if this could be addressed through current
regul ati ons.

Ms. Elgee stated Medicaid regulations are adm nistered by the
Department of Health and Social Services, and not through the
Departnent of Adm nistration; therefore discussions need to involve
that Departnent. She assured the Conmittee the interpretation of
the regulation “is a very high priority” and the departnents have
“agreed to try to expedite this regulation result.”

Senator G een requested the Commttee to encourage “the expedition
of these revised regulations that would increase funding” and
| everage “state dollars to inpact paynent for the people in
assisted living hones.”

SFC- 02 (8) 02/ 22/ 02



Section 1(a)(3)

Department of Adm nistration

Leasi ng

Shortfunding for the anmount required to pay |eases with the
private sector

$1, 300, 000 general funds

M. Spencer comented the original FY 02 request was short-funded
$1.9 nmillion, and based on a recent reassessnent of needs, this
anount is needed to pay state long-term | eases. He el aborated on
the types and lengths of |eases the state currently holds with the
private sector. He stressed that the Departnment has econom zed
where it coul d; however, as | eases expire, there are not many | ower
cost | eases options. He qualified, however, that this request is
significantly |l ower than the Departnent projected.

Ms. Elgee cited the Departnent’s success in reducing costs over the
years, and that even with this request factored in, the tota
general fund expense for the leasing program is less than the
anount required in FY 01

Senat or Leman inquired about the |ease status of the state-owned
Atlin Building.

Ms. Elgee explained that the Atlin Building is included in the
Public Building Fund and the occupants of the building pay rent to
that fund. She stated those nonies are used for the nai ntenance and
operation of that facility. She continued Al aska Housi ng Fi nance
Corporation (AHFC) carries the debt service for the Atlin Building.

Senator Leman asked what percent of the building is occupied by
state entities.

Ms. El gee responded that approximately 80 percent of the building
is occupied by state entities, and the few private tenants have
continuing leases that were in effect when the building was
acqui red.

M. Spencer stated that tenants are aggressively sought for the few
vacancies that are in the Atlin Building.

Co-Chair Donley stated the public has commented that the state
| ease costs are higher than what the private sector woul d charge.
He restated the Commttee' s directive to the Departnent to cut its
| ease costs. He stated that the Departnent has not reduced their
costs as reflected by this supplenmental request.

Ms. El gee responded that the Departnment has reduced its | ease costs

SFC- 02 (9) 02/ 22/ 02



by $600,000 from FY 02 projections. She stated |easing has
hi storically been under-funded intentionally because so nmuch of the
proposed budget is based on projections. She continued this
process has worked very effectively, and “over the course of the
past ten years,” the supplenental requests have been |ower than
their corresponding year’s projections, thus *“avoiding an
unnecessary appropriation of funds.” She noted this “keeps pressure
on the Departnent to reduce these costs.”

Section 1(a)(4)

Departnent of Adm nistration

Leasi ng

FY 02 appropriation for the Anchorage Jail |lease is short
$4, 784. 38

$4, 800general funds

M. Spencer stated this request is to correct a technical error in
t he debt paynent schedul e that was not appropriately reflected in
the FY 02 appropriation.

Section 1(a)(5)

Department of Adm nistration

O fice of Public Advocacy

Shortfundi ng of current year exacerbated by increased costs.
$1, 865, 000 general funds

M. Spencer stated this 1is another agency that has been
historically wunder-funded. He explained the caseload of this
program continues to increase primarily as a result of contractual
costs of private attorneys representing the individuals that the
Ofice O Public Advocacy (OPA) is assigned and required to
represent.

Co- Chair Donley inquired what percentage of this request is the
result of crimnal defense work.

M. Spencer could not provide that specific information; however,
he stated the estimate is based on the current caseload, and its
conparison to prior years. He stated there are a | ot of variables
that affect the Ofice.

Co-Chair Donley asked if there is any intent |anguage in the budget
that supports the Departnent’s position that the OPA was
intentionally under-funded, and that a supplenental is expected.
M. Spencer responded there is no such supportive | anguage.

Co-Chair Donley inquired if a Senate Finance Co-Chair had inferred

SFC- 02 (10) 02/ 22/ 02



this in any conversation.

M. Spencer responded there was no specific conversation regarding
this nmatter.

Senator Donley asked why the Departnment concluded that a
suppl enment al request was appropriate.

M . Spencer stated that the conclusion was reached when no change
was nmade in the program after a history of approximtely thirteen
years of being under-funded. He stressed it is difficult to predict
the costs of this program however, he stated, the Departnent has
been “pretty accurate in the |ast couple of years.”

Co-Chair Donley asked if there are any statutory or structura
organi zati onal changes that can be addressed to reduce the cost of
t he program

M. Spencer replied not at this tine.
Senator Hoffman inquired as to why the casel oads are so expensive

M. Spencer responded that sonme of the expense is generated by an
effort to reduce the backlog of children’s cases.

Co-Chair Donley stated the budget was increased in FY 02, and
inquired if the “high degree” of budgetary increases the OPA has
been receiving woul d address this backl og or whether the casel oad
is increasing and driving the budgetary grow h.

M. Spencer stated the backlog of cases is primarily child-in-need-
of -aid cases and although the backlog of these cases has been
reduced, the program continues to grow.

Co-Chair Donley asked if this gromh is due to “statutory changes
that are increasing the protection for children, because the
government is nore aggressive about reaching out and protecting
children, or is that there are nore children in need of aid for
sonme soci al reason.”

M. Spencer responded “all of the above.” He continued there is no
one single factor, and that a |arger popul ation also contributes to
the grow h.

Ms. El gee stated that changes at the state and federal |evel have

mandated “tighter tinmeframes in ternms of pernmanency planning for
children.”

SFC- 02 (11) 02/ 22/ 02



Senator Hoffrman inquired if the increase in child in need of aid
cases can be attributed to any particular area of the state.

Ms. El gee responded the Departnent would provide a breakout of
casel oads to the Committee.

Section 1(a)(6)

Department of Adm nistration

Publ i c Def ender

Shortfundi ng of current year need and fiscal notes
$600, 000 general funds

BARABARA BRI NK, Director, Public Defender Agency, Departnent of
Adm nistration, testified via teleconference from Anchorage and
explained this supplenental request is the result of reduced
funding and higher costs due to increases in caseloads and
wor kl oads. She explained that half of the request is the result of
reductions in the Agency’'s Smart Start program FY 02 budget
request. She detailed that the under-funding essentially elimnated
two attorneys in the OPA, however the caseloads continued to
increase due to the responsibilities of the Smart Start Program
She continued that the Agency is obligated to investigate every
report of child neglect and harm She stated she nade the deci sion
to keep the two attorneys to continue to represent children within
the strident tinelines required by statute. She nentioned these
attorneys also work on Balloon Project cases, another child
pl acenment program

Ms. Brink inforned the Commttee that a portion of the request is
for funds for |egal support and attorney reclassification She said
the reclassification was necessary to retain qualified staff.

Ms. Brink summarized the balance of the request as covering the
“accunul ative affect of not being funded sufficiently to handle”
the increasing casel oads the Court appoints to the Agency.

Ms. Brink stated the Departnent has taken steps to avoid the need
for supplenental funding including: laying off an investigator in
the Kodiak office; attorneys working long hours wthout
conpensation; and the elimnation of on-call staffers.

SFC 02 # 15, Side B 09:54 AM

Ms. Brink continued that the Agency has al so reduced its training
budget, hired at |lower ranges, and reduced the anount of
computeri zed | egal research. She stated that the Agency’ s casel oad

SFC- 02 (12) 02/ 22/ 02



exceeds maxi mum recomended | evels, and she feels the Agency has
done everything it can to stay within its budget. She stated the
Departnent is trying to recruit a Jesuit volunteer from Catholic
Social Services to work for the Agency in the Bethel office as
funding was not sufficient within the Agency to staff this
posi tion.

Ms. Brink stated the Agency’s responsibility is toits clients and
to the Court.

Section 1(a)(7)

Department of Adm nistration

Publ i ¢ Def ender

Mental Health Court attorney approved by the Mental Health
Tr ust

$73, 000 VHTAAR

Ms. Brink stated the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority
reconmends the Agency receive these funds to assist its nentally
i1l population casel oads. She stated this noney would allow the
Agency to devote one full-tinme attorney to handle this work.

Co-Chair Donley stated a recent audit [copy not avail able]
guestions decisions that were nmade, and the nunber of appeal s that
were made by the Ofice of Public Defenders, and asked what the
Agency has done to address these concerns.

Ms. Brink did not recall these concerns addressed in the audit
report.

Co-Chair Donley stated the comments were included as quotes from
i ndi vidual s interviewed about the operations of the Agency.

Ms. Brink stated that one individual nade such conments in a
st atewi de survey of prosecutors, nenbers of the Court System and
the Departnents of Law and Corrections. She clarified this survey
was no included in the Audit report.

Ms. Brink stressed that the Agency nonitors and conducts neetings
to scrutinize what issues the Agency m ght appeal. She inforned the
Commttee that a crimnal defendant has a constitutional right to
appeal, and the Agency has to abide by his or her decision.

Co-Chair Donley asked if the Agency coul d deci de agai nst nmaking a
“frivol ous appeal or create sone new |l aw that doesn’'t really make
sense just because sone defendant w shes.”

Ms. Brink responded that was correct, and she stressed that the

SFC- 02 (13) 02/ 22/ 02



Agency has never presented a frivol ous appeal. She stated, however,
t he Agency does have a duty to provide a defendant with an appeal
if the defendant w shes.

Section 1(b) & (c)
Department of Adm nistration
Seni or Servi ces

Seni or Services Enploynent Program hold harm ess — Federa
regul ati ons not pronul gated so funds not needed
($120, 000)

Ms. Elgee stated that in the year 2001, the Departnment was notified
of federal changes that affected how nuch the Departnent coul d pay
seniors in prograns adm ni stered under the Conm ssion on Aging. She
stated the Legislature added noney to the program in order to
address the federal change; however federal regulations are
forthcom ng and the need for this allocation is not necessary this
fiscal year

Section 19

M scel | aneous C ai ns

Department of Adm nistration

M scel | aneous Clains: -0-. Stal e-dated warrants: $23, 744. 07
$23, 700 general funds

M. Spencer stated this request would pay invoices from previous
fiscal years.

Departnent of Comrunity and Econom ¢ Devel opnent

Section 2(a)

Department of Comrunity and Econonmi ¢ Devel opnent

Al aska Aer ospace Devel opnent Corporation

Repl ace $311.9 of unrealized FY 02 A aska Sci ence & Technol ogy
Foundati on I nvestment Earnings with AADC receipts

$ 0 fund request

Section 2(a)

Departnent of Community and Econom c Devel opnent

Al aska Aer ospace Devel opnent Cor por ati on Facilities
Mai nt enance

Repl ace $69.2 of wunrealized Al aska Science & Technol ogy
Foundation FY 02 Investnent Earnings with AADC receipts

$ 0 request

TOM LAWSON, D rector, Division of Admnistrative Services,

Departnent of Conmmunity and Econom c Devel opnent, stated the Al aska
Aer ospace Devel opment Corporation (AADC) normally receives an

SFC- 02 (14) 02/ 22/ 02



annual appropriation from the Al aska Science and Technol ogy
Foundation (ASTF). He furthered this request is a funding source
change necessary because of a poor performance of the (ASTF)
endowrent the past year. He noted that this request would change
the funding source to cover the expected shortfall.

Senat or Green asked for clarification that general funds would be
used to fund this shortfall.

Co-Chair Donley stated the Governor, not the Legislature, is
proposi ng to use general funds to cover this request.

M. Lawson clarified that this request does not involve genera
f unds.

Co- Chair Donley asked which funds would be used to replace the
endownent funds.

M. Lawson responded that Aerospace Corporate receipts, which are
earnings generated from | aunches at the site, would replace the
endownent funds.

Co-Chair Donley clarified that corporate receipts would be used to
fund the shortfall.

Co-Chair Donley asked if there are any projections regarding the
Endowrent’ s perfornmance in FY 03.

M. Lawson inforned the Comrittee that at a recent ASTF Board
Meeti ng, Robert Storer, Executive Director of the Al aska Permanent
Fund Corporation and nmanagers of the ASTF Endownent, estimated the
earnings of the fund would be approximately 2.9 percent of the
principal; therefore the earnings would be approximtely $2.9
mllion for FY 02.

Co-Chair Donley stated it is difficult to project the anount of
receipts. He inquired as to how the Departnent would be
conpensating for the mnmarket downturn and its affect on the
Endowrent fund.

M. Lawson responded the Departnent is addressing each endowrent
earnings situation on a one-by-one basis. He specified that AADC
has received partial funding from ASTF for several vyears. He
continued that in the Governor’s FY 03 Budget Request these funds
are not included.

Co-Chair Donley clarified that the AADC funding specified in the FY
03 budget consists entirely of corporate receipt funds.

M. Lawson responded yes, with additional CIP funds from federa
proj ects.

SFC- 02 (15) 02/ 22/ 02



Senator Hof fman asked for a projection of corporate receipts
generated by | aunches.

M. Lawson cited three | aunches are schedul ed for FY 03.

Co-Chair Donley inquired as to what other state prograns woul d have
a shortfall due to |loss of ASTF endowrent funding.

M. Lawson stated that the University would be affected by the
shortfall in ASFT endownent fund earnings.

Section 2(c)

Department of Comrunity and Econoni ¢ Devel opnent

Al aska Aer ospace Devel opnent Corporation Facilities

Grant fromthe US Departnment of Defense for Kodiak Launch
Computer Inprovenents — Infrastructure Safety Upgrades,
Range Safety System and Road | nprovenents

$20, 000, 000 federal funds

M. Lawson stated this capital project is funded by a federal grant
to provide safety upgrades and inprovenents to the facility. He
said the funds are expected to be available in May 2002.

Departnent of Corrections

Section 3(a)

Department of Corrections

Facility — Capital I|nprovenent Unit

The $160.5 general fund fiscal note funding Ch.32, SLA 2001
(HB 149 Private Prison in Kenai) is no |onger needed since
Kenai voters rejected the proposal. Funds are reappropriated
to inmate Health Care.

DWAYNE PEEPLES, Director, Division of Adm nistrative Services,
Departnent of Corrections, stated this appropriation request is the
result of not building a private prison in the Kenai area as
approval of the project did not pass a vote of the people in the
affected area. He stated these funds were never expended and are
now avail abl e for reappropriation.

M. Peeples stated this request, if granted, would transfer these
general funds to address the short-funding in inmate health care.
He explained that this programhas historically been short-funded,
and he informed the Conmittee that the FY 01 budget shortfall of
$1.7 mllion was subsidized by utilizing retirenent incentive
program (RIP) savings and other funds in the Departnent. He
continued that due to “population growmh in the Departnent”, and
the exhaustion of RIP savings, the Departnment predicts an
approximate $2 million shortfall this year.

SFC- 02 (16) 02/ 22/ 02



M. Peeples informed the Committee “the Departnent is in the
process of nodernizing its nedical services, including closer
utilization review, developing an electronic nedical information
system renegotiating services contracts, reevaluating the health
services it is providing for its inmates, distinguishing between
sent enced popul ati on and un-sentenced popul ation.”

Co- Chair Donl ey asked for “the distinction” between sentenced and
un- sent enced popul ati on.

M . Peeples responded that the Departnent is responsible for the
entire inmate popul ation, and has been providing uniform health
services to all inmates regardl ess of their status. He explained
that the Departnment is planning to “enmulate” a plan currently being
used in O egon and Washi ngton, identifying specific health services
based on incarceration tinme. He continued that the plan would
specify chronic and preventive health care services coverage for
sentenced innates, as well as the care to be provided to an un-
sentenced i nmate based on the length of their incarceration.

Chair Donley clarified that if an inmate is incarcerated for a
short anount of time, the state’s legal obligation to address an
i ndi vidual s long-term health care issues woul d be reduced.

Section 3(b)

Departnent of Corrections

Inmate Health Care

Shortfunding in health care costs resulting from continued
inflation of pharnmacy costs, staff salaries (includes $676.0
for health care worker/nurses salary costs), contract
physi ci an costs and hospital care.

$1, 839, 500 general funds

M. Peeples inforned the Commttee that the Departnent is exerting
“tighter control on a pharmacy fornulary” of what drugs would or
woul d not be issued. He stated that the acceleration in pharnacy
costs in FY 01 conpared to FY 00 reflects an increase of $400, 000,
wi th expectations of the sane anount of increase when conparing FY
02 to FY 01. M. Peeples stated new control neasures include: a
closer review of contract services; staffing patterns; and
swtching to keep-on-person drugs. He stated the accel eration of
costs should be reduced in FY 03 as a result of the inplenentation
of these measures.

Co- Chair Donley asked if the Departnent could explain what was the
“driver’ of the increase in pharnmaceutical costs.

M . Peepl es responded there was not a single factor. He continued
that there would always be a certain nunber of very expensive

SFC- 02 (17) 02/ 22/ 02



cases, however, the increasing costs of pharnaceuticals and
inflation drive the expense. He inforned the Conmttee that the
Departnent projects a seven to nine percent rate of inflation in FY
01, and double-digit inflation figures in FY 02.

Co-Chair Donley inquired if the Departnent anticipates costs
continuing in this manner.

M. Peeples responded these costs would continue to increase. He
furthered that a portion of this supplenental request is the result
of the Department experiencing nmedical cost under-funding in FY 00,
and this conbined with a statew de adjustnent in nursing salaries

in FY 01, has resulted in approximately half of this $2 mllion
request being attributed to “legacies we have been carrying
forward.”

Co-Chair Donley stated that the state’s obligation to provide
medi cal care has been driven by court decisions. He inquired if
there is any sort of “chart” which reflects the |ong-term scenario
associated with illnesses fromwhich the Departnent could determ ne
a course of nedical treatnent based on an inmate’s |ength of
i ncarceration.

M. Peeples responded that he was not aware of any long-term
medi cal synopsis, and that historical nedical managenent indicates
that providing treatnent for long-term inmtes is the best
approach. He stated there is no one answer to the cost increases,
however the Departnent is |ooking at various solutions such as:
creative financing or providing alternative funds to cover sone of
the nedical expenses; nmedi cal parole activities; and the
refinanci ng of some health care cases.

Co- Chair Donley voiced that fromthe public policy perspective, and
in consideration of the public’s perception that innmates are being
provi ded nore nedical options than the public could afford, the
Departnment “needs to strike a bal ance” between follow ng court
ordered criteria and keeping nedical coverage within acceptable
| evel s. He asked if a policy or procedure chart could be devel oped
that would reflect how the Departnment arrives at the appropriate
course of action regardi ng nedi cal coverage.

M. Peeples stated the Departnent would provide a copy of the
current health plan to the subconmmttee.

Senat or Hof fman asked if the correctional facilities use generic
brands of pharmaceutical s.

M . Peepl es responded that generic brands are primarily used, and

expl ai ned that Al aska “participates in a multi-state consortiuni
whi ch purchases drugs at a very good price.

SFC- 02 (18) 02/ 22/ 02



Section 3(c)

Departnent of Corrections

Par ol e Board

Shortfunding in operations due to increased prisoner hearings
and Parol e Board activity

$100, 000 general funds

LARRY JONES, Executive Director, Parole Board, Departnent of
Corrections, explained this request is the result of a technical
change in the budgetary process in FY 02. He stated that
historically the Parole Board was funded using a DOC BRU; however,
“a new pl ateau” of expenses has been reached as the result of such
things as increased hearings due to recently enacted victiminpact
| aws. He continued that the Parole Board is supportive of these new
regul ati ons; however, having victins and the accused face to face
at parole hearings tends to | engthen the proceedings, resulting in
fewer hearings per day. He reiterated that the new regul ations
affect the Parole Board in a “very positive” way.

M. Jones reported that the Parole Board has al so becone invol ved
i n addressing the Departnment of Corrections’ nedical costs through
a new “special nedical parole” program He detailed the stringent
eligibility requirements for this type of parole and expl ai ned t hat
t he nedi cal expenses of individuals on nedical parole are covered
by a different funding nechanism than through the Departnent of
Corrections.

Co-Chair Donley asked if the eligibility requirements for this
nmedi cal parole could be better “crafted.”

M. Jones responded that discussion is underway to present new
| anguage to the Legisl ature.

Co-Chair Donley stated that in recent “no-frills prison”
| egislation, criteria was actually “liberalized” to allow for
i ncreased usage of the nedical parole program He stated that if
the program needs further flexibility, legislation to address that
could be “entertained.”

M. Jones agreed that nore flexibility would be needed.

M. Jones assured the Conmttee that the five-nenber Parol e Board
has strived to save noney even in |light of increased workl oads by
i npl enenting such neasures as changing the logistics of the
hearings. He continued that travel expenses are high as this is a
“traveling board.” He noted that the Parole Board has received the
sane conpensation |evel since 1984, and “this is all but a full-
time job.”

SFC- 02 (19) 02/ 22/ 02



Co-Chair Donley clarified that the Board is paid a per diem

M. Jones stated that in addition to conpensation, Board Menbers
are paid $75 for a half day and $100 for a full day of business as
established in 1984.

Co-Chair Donley inquired if the nunber of Board nmenbers shoul d be
increased or if subcommttees could be introduced.

M. Jones responded that other states have tried subcommttees and
have gone back to a single Parole Board. He noted that the current
five-nenber Parole Board conplinents the size of Al aska's prison
popul ati on, and would be sufficient until the prison population
becones “substantially greater.” He continued that the Board hol ds
its decision-making to a high standard where public safety is
concerned. He stated the Board recogni zes that sone individuals do
not receive an adequate sentence to benefit from Departnent of
Corrections’ treatnent prograns, and if those individuals are
rel eased on parole, “they can be ordered, as part of a parole
condition, to participate, on their own dollar, in a private
treatnent program?’

Senat or Hof f nan asked about the contractual anount of $60, 000
pur chases.

M. Jones stated the funding would prinmarily cover travel costs,
shipping of files, telephonic costs of hearings, and other
operational costs of the Board.

Co- Chair Donl ey conmmented he has received favorable reports about
t he operations of the Parole Board, and voi ced appreciation for the
“good job” they are doing. He cited that any negative coments he
receives are not with the Parole Board but with the fact that the
Parole Board is required to review certain cases after a relatively
short tinme of incarceration.

M. Jones voi ced appreciation for the support the Parol e Board has
received fromthe Legislature.

Section 3(d)

Departnent of Corrections

cP

O fender Tracking Information System Devel opnent
$762, 000 federal funds

M. Peeples explained that this federally funded capital project
request would allow for conpletion of an automated nedical
i nformati on system being co-developing wth State of Ut ah.

Section 19

SFC- 02 (20) 02/ 22/ 02



M scel | aneous C ai ns

Department of Corrections

M scel | aneous C ai nms: $3, 204. 11
$3, 200 general funds

M. Peeples noted this request would provide funds to pay for “ol d”
medi cal and shi ppi ng i nvoi ces.

Depart nent of Education and Early Devel opnment

Section 5(a)(1)

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment
Pupi | Transportation

Cost for new bus routes approved in current year
$541, 600 general funds

KAREN REHFELD, Director, Division of Education Support Services,
Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent, explained that this
itemis a request for funds to cover pupil transportation.

Ms. Rehfeld noted that the current funding appropriation is not
sufficient to cover these costs.

EDDY JEANS, WManager, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Di vi sion of Education Support Services, Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent, explained to the Commttee that prior to FY 02,
t he Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent projected pupi
transportation costs; however, beginning in FY 02, the Departnent
receives the cost projections directly fromthe school districts.
He continued that during this transition, sone school districts did
not include projections for new routes. He stated that when the new
school year began, the new routes had to be factored in at the
| ocal level, resulting in this supplenental request.

Senat or Leman commented that | ast year, transportation costs were
increased “quite a bit,” and he inquired as to what other factors
in addition to fuel costs and negotiated contracts have caused the
i ncrease in new routes.

M. Jeans replied that the increase | ast year was the result of new
contracts that were negotiated for the Anchorage, Fairbanks, Kodi ak
and Mat-Su areas. He stated that this year’s increases are due to
an increase in routes and exanpl ed that Fairbanks had an increase
in traditional prograns and special education summrer school routes.
He continued that North Slope Borough students had been using
public transportati on buses, however, those students are now using
school buses. He continued that in another area, a new school was
built, and the school district had to reassign routes to transport
student s.

SFC- 02 (21) 02/ 22/ 02



M. Jeans informed the Comrmittee that the state reinburses
hazardous routes, even if within a mle and a half of the school,
at 100 percent, and that regular routes within a mle and a half of
a school are reinbursed at 50 percent.

Senator Green inquired if the state has always rei nbursed schoo
districts for sunmer school transportation.

M. Jeans responded that state reinbursement for sunmer schoo
transportation is restricted to special education transportation.

Senator Hoffman asked why there has been a reduction of
transportation costs in sone areas.

M. Jeans responded that in some areas parents transport their
children and in other areas, such as Juneau, the school district
contracts the bus transportation out and incurs | ess admnistrative
costs. He noted that admnistrative costs are rei nbursed under the
Department of Education and Early Developnent transportation
program He continued that as districts request new routes, the
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment asks themto rework
existing routes to ensure efficiency.

Senator G een cited the back-up information as stating that w thout
this additional funding, the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent woul d have to prorate school district paynents in FY
02. She asked if this would be a statew de pro-ration whereby al
school districts would be penalized for those wth overages.

M. Jeans responded that is correct; that all districts would be
uniformy pro rated.

Co-Chair Donley asked for confirmation that current statute
requires the reinbursable percentage for transportati on expensed
for districts to be a mninmum of 90 percent, and that non-district
rei nbursenent is a mninmum of 100 percent.

M. Jeans stated that is correct.

Section 5(a)(2)

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

School s for the Handi capped

Education costs for children in state custody who require out-
of -state pl acenent

$165, 500

Ms. Rehfeld explained that this request is for children who are in
state custody under Fam |y In Need services, but “because of their
severely enotionally disturbed condition,” these children are
housed in out of state residential treatnment prograns. She stated

SFC- 02 (22) 02/ 22/ 02



that “nost of these children are Medicaid eligible; however,
Medi cai d does not provide coverage for educational costs of their
treatment program She reported this request would pay for those
costs.

SFC 02 # 16, Side A 10:42 AM

Co-Chair Donley inquired if these costs are included as regular
budget itens.

Ms. Rehfeld responded that within the FY 02 operating budget, there
is $500,000 to cover these prograns based on historical needs;
however, based on current nunbers of children in this program
projections are that the budget will be short this requested
armount .

Co-Chair Donley asked if this the result of increased costs of the
programor an increase in the nunber of children in the program

Ms. Rehfeld responded that the Iength of treatnent is the “driver”
of this need, as the children are staying in the program | onger
therefore the educational costs are increasing.

Senator Green asked if this noney is paid to other states.

Ms. Rehfeld responded that the Departnent’s noney is actually
all ocated to the Departnment of Health and Social Services, which
pays the costs of these various out-of-state treatnent prograns.

Senator Green clarified that other states are ultimately paid for
t hese servi ces.

Ms. Rehfeld concurred.

Senator Green stated there is recent |legislation that addresses
bringing these children back to the state for treatnent.

Section 5(b)

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Foundati on

Use bal ance in foundation programresulting fromthe Cctober
student count to fund suppl enmental needs.

(%1, 975, 900) general funds

Ms. Rehfeld stated this decrenment projection is based on the
October 2001 statew de student count and this amount wll be
avai lable in the current year appropriation.

SFC- 02 (23) 02/ 22/ 02



Section 5(c)
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

P

Federal School Renovation, Individuals with D sabilities
Education Act (IDEA) and Technol ogy grants for |ocal school
districts

$5, 400, 000 federal funds

Ms. Rehfeld commented this is a capital supplenental request
through which a one-tinme federal grant appropriation would be
avai lable to the Departnment of Education for construction of new
school s and nmaj or mai nt enance projects for schools neeting certain
criteria.

Co-Chair Donley asked if there is a list of qualifying school
projects in the back-up material.

M. Jeans replied that a list is currently not available as the
Department is still working with the federal governnent to
determ ne which projects neet the eligibility criteria. He stated
that the Departnent is working fromthe list of CIP projects that
were not funded this prior year.

Co-Chair Donley stated the Legislature would need nore specifics
before the request could be approved.

M. Jeans stated there is federal eligibility criterion inposed on
the State regarding this funding that dictates how the projects are
selected. He continued that the list is being finalized and woul d
be provided to the Legislature. He stated that 75 percent of this
grant noney is avail able for school construction with 25 percent to
be awarded on a conpetitive basis for technology activities and
renovati on necessitated by the Anmericans with Disabilities Act.

Senat or Hof fman asked if federal education reform neasures woul d be
i npl enented in FY 02.

M. Jeans responded the education reform neasures pending in
Congress woul d not be inplenented until FY 083.

Ms. Rehfeld clarified that federal education reform appropriations
woul d be reflected in the Governor’s FY 03 operating budget.

Section 5(d)(1)—(2)

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Along with a reappropriation of $198,600 fromthe Departnent
of Law, this will fund the McGawH || assessnent contract
i ncrease of $498, 900

Ms. Rehfeld stated this request pertains to the statew de

SFC- 02 (24) 02/ 22/ 02



assessnent program specifically to current efforts re-focusing on
hi gh school qualifying exit exam nation measuring the essenti al
skills required for students to graduate.

Senator G een asked if funds specified for reappropriation in
Section 5(d)(2) could be used for other purposes.

Co-Chair Donley responded the $198,600 amobunt is from a State
settlement and could be re-directed by the Legislature.

Ms. Rehfeld responded this allotnent was re-appropriated to fund
this request in the Governor’s budget proposal.

Co-Chair Donley asked Senator Geen to review the H gh School
Qualifying Exit Examfunding in the FY 02 budget and determ ne the
total funding appropriation.

Ms. Rehfeld stated the cost of the contract to adm nister the exit
exam has increased as well as the cost of revisions, field-testing,
and printing needs. She concluded the total cost of the exit exam
in FY 02 woul d be approximately $4 mllion.

#

ADJ QURNIVENT

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey adjourned the neeting at 10:52 AM

SFC- 02 (25) 02/ 22/ 02



